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Hearing commenced at 10.52 am

HASSELL, MR JOHN

Vice President and Transport Portfolio Representatre,
Western Australian Farmers Federation,

sworn and examined:

PRICE, MS MELISSA

Manager, Business Development,
CBH Group,

sworn and examined:

DAVIES, MR OWEN
Logistics Strategy Manager,
CBH Group,

sworn and examined:

KIRTON, MR JAMES
Corporate Analyst,
CBH Group,

sworn and examined:

SMITH, MR GRAEME

Farmer and Grains Representative,

Pastoralists and Graziers Association of Western Agiralia,
sworn and examined:

BROCKMAN, MR SLADE

Policy Director,

Pastoralists and Graziers Association of Western Agiralia,
sworn and examined:

Hon SIMON O’BRIEN : On behalf of the committee, | welcome you albto meeting. Before we
begin, | need to ask each of you to take the oatheoaffirmation.

[Witnesses took the affirmation.]

Hon SIMON O’BRIEN : Thank you for that. | will now ask each of youturn to state your full
name, your contact address and the capacity inhwoa appear before the committee. Thank you.
You will all have signed a document entitled “Infaation for Witnesses”. Have you read and
understood that document?

The WitnessesYes.

Hon SIMON O’BRIEN : All the witnesses having responded in the affiimeg | will now point

out that these proceedings are being recorded Imgddd. A transcript of your evidence will be
provided to you. To assist the committee and Hahgaease quote the full title of any document
that you may refer to during the course of the ingarfor the record, and please be aware of the
microphones and try to talk into them. | remind ybat your transcript will become a matter for the



Uniform Legislation and Statutes Review Subcommittééednesday, 16 April 2008 - Session Three Page 2

public record. If for some reason you wish to makeconfidential statement during today’s
proceedings, you should request that the evideecéaken in closed session. If the committee
grants your request, any public and media in a#teoe will be excluded from the hearing. Please
note that until such time as the transcript of youiolic evidence is finalised, it should not be mad
public. | advise you that premature publicationdmsclosure of public evidence may constitute a
contempt of Parliament and may mean that the natpublished or disclosed is not subject to
parliamentary privilege. | note for the record thia withesses are currently appearing before the
subcommittee, which consists of me and Hon Sheils Mvith the assistance of our advisory-legal
officer, Mr Paul Grant. You are representing betwgeu three organisations—the Pastoralists and
Graziers Association of Western Australia, CBH Groand the Western Australian Farmers
Federation. | understand that, following on frore jhint written submission that you have made,
you are now happy to appear as a group to aidahmemittee in its deliberations. Would anyone like
to make an opening statement to the committee balbef the group?

Ms Price: Yes, please. Thank you, chairman, and Hon Shdilss, for giving the Western
Australian grains industry the opportunity to mesh you today to discuss our recent submission
on the proposed overloading of vehicles legislatibhere is no need for me to introduce the
members of the team, as you have already met theenreason we are here today is that the WA
grains industry has made a joint submission witlpeet to the Road Traffic (Vehicles) Bill 2007.
This bill sets out, among other issues relatingebicles, the regime for the loading requirements
for vehicles. The grains industry submits that bileshould be amended to make provision for a
mass management concessionary scheme, in partiiiimg to the grains industry. Such a
scheme would provide concessions for the overla@pdinvehicles for grain growers on the basis
that after a number of strikes, penalties wouldyapfhere is currently zero flexibility in the mdde
presented in the bill. In preparation for the iduotion of the chain of responsibility and
enforcement model legislation, on which this bsllbased, CBH has successfully run an industry-
imposed scheme over the past two harvests. Th&rsels known as the harvest mass management
scheme. We do not have any additional informatemgive to you today. We propose to identify
certain aspects of the submission that we beliesenaportant. My two colleagues from CBH will
discuss various aspects of that. We will then cg@lbn our colleagues representing the grains
industry to speak from a farmers’ perspective. Il now ask Owen to discuss the actual harvest
mass management scheme at CBH. Thank you.

[11.00 am]

Mr Davies: The reason for introducing the harvest mass n@magt scheme was simple in
knowing that the legislation was coming and woudditnminent. It is a pre-emptive approach that
CBH had taken before the legislation was being telad he reasons for introducing it was; firstly,
to set a process as a handler and a receiver iof gmd to demonstrate reasonable steps of defence.
Secondly, by demonstrating again responsible behbavit would hopefully demonstrate to the
government that the industry itself could self-rag¢et Additionally, we spent considerable effort in
helping prepare and educate our member growerstendransport industry of the forthcoming
legislation.

The scheme has developed and evolved over two .y&asentially, flexibility is allowed to
vehicles mass when they deliver, to account forutiigue difficulties the grain industry encounters
when loading on-farm. Essentially, a grower oraams$porter will not know the weight of the vehicle
when leaving the farm, and only know when they heaaveighbridge. Our scheme rules are only
applied if the vehicle is safe to manage that weggid is managed very carefully in our systems. If
a vehicle is overloaded, they have two options:tiveto forfeit the overload proportion and the
forfeited portion either goes to a charitable camst a community cause in the past two years, or
to leave site and rectify their load and re-preséhe scheme itself has incurred much expense to
CBH and the industry already. Our systems have lwwmged; there has been an extensive
communication program, a big training exercise wf staff and growers in the transport industry



Uniform Legislation and Statutes Review Subcommittééednesday, 16 April 2008 - Session Three Page 3

and we have had to face considerable oppositiatialiy, and certain conflict onsite in trying to
police the rules strictly.

Hon SIMON O’BRIEN : Where did the opposition come from?

Mr Davies: From the industry in terms of the change in ofpegapractice. We were introducing a

rule where in the past Main Roads on-roadside virigivas the only deterrent; in our scheme,
every single vehicle is captured. However, haviagetl wide opposition initially, the scheme is
now widely supported. People have understood theemences of the forthcoming legislation and
have understood the actions that CBH in the ingiuaste taking. Further to this, in year two, we
voluntarily tightened the rules to address someMain Roads’ initial concerns. So, we have
evolved the scheme to actually make it even maaetimal and responsible.

It has been extremely successful as a scheme. W& dngen had acknowledgement from Main

Roads and the Minister for Planning and Infrastitest The stats in the submission clearly

demonstrate there has been a dramatic reductioveihoading from the year in 2005-06, before the
introduction, to the past two years. You will séatt15 per cent overloading above our scheme
rules was experienced before the scheme and tlthiwe to one per cent overloading. This also
demonstrates, we feel, that the 10 per cent tateramas set at the correct level. In the second
graph, it is also important to note that aroundp8d.cent of all vehicles were at or around the
standard mass limits allowed on Western Austraigads. It can be demonstrated that the industry
is loading responsibly within the scheme rules. Bgke system that we have implemented

discourages repeated infringement and should sy &ll their strikes within a season, they then
lose any entitlement to a tolerance or to flexipili

One important point | would like to make about deading is that it is not necessarily unsafe.
Many vehicles are capable of carrying more tharsthadard limits and, indeed, gain concessions,
if carrying different commodities on the same roassg the same vehicles. However, should there
be no tolerance, CBH may well be forced to turnyawehicles, incurring considerable economic
and social costs, which James will elaborate on.

Mr Kirton : The grain industry would like to present to tleenenittee examples of two options that
could occur under the current model legislationw# were to take an average harvest year, for
example, 2005-06, there were 394 053 loads delivierehe CBH bins during this period. Of these
deliveries, 71 per cent of the trucks were overdgal VRL limit. At the extreme, this is just unde
280 000 extra trips that would have to be made usmx&BH would have to turn away these trucks.
Clearly, this is unviable, given that the curreansport costs during harvest period to grain fasme
is just under $128 million. The extra costs incdrby having to travel these extra distances after
being rejected is estimated, conservatively, &tymsler $73 million. Clearly, that is untenable, so
the second option would be to forfeit grain. Agaih,we were to take an average harvest,
45 per cent of overloaded vehicles chose to fotfestr grain at an average of 0.4292 tonnes per
vehicle. This is equivalent to 96 403 tonnes ofrgfarfeited, at an average price of $350—which
is conservative given this coming harvest—that waedual $34 million. As you can see, both of
these examples are commercially untenable for thie gndustry; hence, the only viable solution as
far as the grain industry sees it is under-loading.

The grain industry perceives four major effectsuofler-loading. The first is that there will be
44 000 more round trips made on country roads Uks during harvest. The second is that freight
prices will rise to compensate for dead freightréased fuel consumption and driver's wages. It is
conservatively estimated that this will cost arr@$13 million. Thirdly, the environmental impact:
the 44 000 extra round trips will mean that ther lve extra pollution thus this legislation would
almost directly affect the pollution in rural areasd rural communities. Fourthly, grain damage:
because extra round trips would have to be maden gvill be exposed in paddocks and holdings
for far longer, which means that there is a greeht@nce of weather exposure.
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The final point that the grain industry would like make with regards to the model legislation is
road safety. Main Roads has made two assertionsgdnegotiations and conversations with them
that overloaded vehicles cause more accidents vbhitles that are equal to or below the VRL
limit. They, furthermore, say that road damageassed by vehicles that are equal to or below the
VRL limit. We have not seen evidence presentedhitofact, so we have actually gone out and we
have tried to ascertain evidence to show what viedgewill be the actual result. In January 2007,
Monash University’s Accident Research Centre ptklis a comprehensive study titled “The
Influence of Trends in Heavy Vehicle Travel on RoB@duma in the Light Vehicle Fleet”. This
publication—sorry, is there an issue, chairman?

Hon SIMON O’BRIEN : No, not at all. | am comparing this with your té&h submission in order
to follow it.

Mr Kirton : .Sorry, my apologies.

This publication identified the following three roajpoints. By 2010, there will be a significant
increase in heavy vehicle traffic on non-metropolitoads. The second point is the increase in
volume is considered a large road safety issuémaly, as there are direct correlations between
the volume of heavy vehicles travelling on roadd evad accidents with light passenger vehicles.
Thirdly and finally, for every 1 347 190 kilometrésvelled on rural roads by a heavy vehicle,
there is a reportable accident. Based on the 44n@®@ round trips that will be made, there is
approximately 7 005 387 kilometres extra that wédltravelled during harvest period. According to
Monash’s report, the Bureau of Infrastructure, B@ort and Regional Economics and the
department of transport figures, there will be &&a heavy vehicle accidents during the harvest
period based on the current model legislation.

| would now like to pass on to my colleagues at P&& WAFF to give a perspective from a
farmer’s point of view.

[11.10 am]
Hon SIMON O’BRIEN : Okay, who would like to lead off with that—Mr Hzedl?

Mr Hassell: Thank you. There are a few points that | wouke [io make, and they are mainly to
back up CBH. From a farmer’'s perspective, we needobk at several things including the
perishability of grain. The longer the grain is aqutthe weather, the greater the chance it will get
weather damaged. We can go from a situation intwthie grain is worth, as James said, an average
of $350 a tonne. If it gets weather damaged, it fayworth less than $100 a tonne. That is a
significant economic loss due to under-loading, clhnot only increases the time of harvest as
result of increased turnaround times but also am®e the number of trucks on the road.

| think another very important point stated in Ovgesubmission is that throughout the state there
are approximately 600 loading points for the minindustry. Recently we had a meeting with

Minister MacTiernan. Also, she stated in a receitel to us that the farmers’ position on loading
grain is not unique. We contend, on a conservdiags, that our position is absolutely unique. |

have a very small farm with 40-odd paddocks goimg crop and | will be out-loading from each of

those paddocks. | took a conservative figure obdBloading points per farm, and given CBH has
5 500 shareholders, that makes for 55 000 out#hgpghoints. It is impossible to have 55 000

weighbridge points around the state. It makessbhaliely unique.

Minister MacTiernan’s advisor, Rob Giles, made &eofpoint at that meeting. He suggested that if
we have a good season the potential for this yearenrgpeople are going out of sheep because
grain is more profitable—is for 20 million tonne§ grain to come off the state’s grain growing
areas. The previous record through CBH was 15 anill®n tonnes of grain. If we increase the
number of loads by 10 per cent and slow it downyillt draw harvest time well out to the end of
January. That could almost be disastrous in terfimtiseodollars lost to growers. It has been shown
that we are drastically reducing overloading. lotfdhe state government is getting 100 per cent
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policing out of this legislation, which it could vier have achieved before. This legislation has
really reduced overloading and that should haveentlad roads much safer.

The final point that | would like to make is thaetharvest mass management scheme is asking for
a 10 per cent tolerance; that is, the ability tdlan additional 10 per cent of grain. Howeveypif

go over the 10 per cent tolerance you get youkesrand you lose your load. The Department for
Planning and Infrastructure’s policy planning omeessional loading cites cases in which trucks
are allowed to overload on a regular basis up toedain level if they are measured on a
weighbridge. Is that correct, Slade?

Mr Brockman: Yes.

Mr Hassell: | cannot see the difference between loading upOtper cent in a paddock without a
weighbridge and loading absolutely to the 10 peit,oe whatever higher figure it might be, if you
have a weighbridge. That is it for me, thank you.

Hon SIMON O’BRIEN : Thanks for, Mr Hassell. Mr Smith, did you wantdaomment from the
PGA point of view?

Mr Smith: Yes. Thank you very much for allowing the PGA lie here. The harvest mass
management scheme has been very successful dimengatst two years and, from a farmer’s
perspective, | have seen the success of the scheweld like to give members an example of the
difficulties associated with the variations in thectolitre weight of grain.

Last year | took part in a secondary scheme wittH@Bwhich we actually measured the hectolitre
weight of grain on a regular basis so that we cdeligrmine if it were possible to load trucks te th
correct weight. We harvested in one paddock, werthé next paddock, took a correct hectolitre
weight of the grain and the harvesters then wettig¢amther side of the paddock, on the same day—
as they will—and the grain weight increased fromhédtolitres to 82 hectolitres. We did not
actually have a hectolitre weight for the otheresiof the paddock and suddenly we had an
additional nine tonnes of grain on the truck. ltvexy, very difficult to accurately weigh grain
100 per cent of the time. What we are saying istthia scheme is most probably not the be-all and
the end-all of all scenarios. As technology catalq@sand we can actually get accurate weights in
the paddock, the scheme may be discontinued orgeldaim some manner. However, until such
times as we have that improved technology we readlyd a scheme that will work otherwise we
end up with a criteria of having a lot more trucksthe road for a longer period of time during the
harvest period. That is not a good scenario. Onsthéstics that have been presented, we are
looking at an increase of 5.2 more accidents irsffs¢em; meaning every two years we are possibly
going to have a fatal accident as the result dfgbanario. It is not necessarily the weight thbg;k

it is the speed that kills. As it is now, the hatvenass management scheme has been very, very
successful.

The other area that we really need to look atesatceptable standard of risk. The aircraft ingustr
has an acceptable standard of risk. It does ndeméive are a pedestrian walking out on the road,
a truck driver or a farmer; we have an acceptabdedard of risk. The state government's
acceptable level of risk on its contribution to oty roads is, give or take, $106 million. The stat
government could quite easily put two or threeidmlldollars into country roads, but that is not an
acceptable risk for the government. The acceptstaledard of risk is $106 million. We say that
there is an acceptable level of risk at a 10 pat t#erance and that that will be a good balance i
the system. That is really where that part of agument is at.

On a personal basis, | would like to see this hagpEause, in my case, | will just go out and buy
another trailer to go behind my truck. Currentlyhdve a four-axle truck with a six-axle trailer

behind, capable of carrying about 72 metric torgress. If | stick another trailer on the back, | am
going to have to under-load if there is a zerortoiee. That suddenly will take me to 108 tonnes
gross. | am just a farmer. | am not a professitmiak driver. That is actually going to put morskri
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into the system. | will not be the only farmer dpitihat because we have to get this crop off in a
given time because of the risk factor of weather.

When we look at trucks: my truck is a late-modatk:. It is a very good truck. However, by the

same token, that same truck could be working tfsedHson in the mining industry. The truck has
not changed one skerrick, but it could go to thaing industry and be allowed to carry a much

higher load characteristic under concessional t@adlhe truck has not changed. A lot of farmers
have very good trucks, but the acceptable levekéffor the truck changes when the farmer uses it
to cart in the mining industry. In many cases, keum the northern wheatbelt will go to be used in
the mining industry. | cannot understand why, ia ¢inain industry, we cannot get this tolerance, yet
in the mining industry we can. Thank you very much.

Hon SIMON O’BRIEN : Thank you very much, Mr Smith.

Thanks to you all for your presentations. They hememunicated a great deal of information and
views in a very concise and digestible way.

Some questions do arise. Firstly—I might put tbiydu, Mr Davies, if you are able to answer it—
you pointed out that with the harvest mass managesaheme, every single load of grain that is
trucked will be weighed because that is what hapeithe destination or the receival point; is that
correct?

[11.20 am]
Mr Davies: If it comes into a CBH site, that is correct.
Hon SIMON O’BRIEN : Into a CBH site, yes. Would that be the vast migjof the grain?

Mr Davies: Yes. In the past it would have been nearly al ginain. Competition has taken some
grain away from the CBH network but the vast mayoyes.

Hon SIMON O’BRIEN : Does it then follow that the concern about masefiectively an issue
from the paddock to your receival point, rathentbayond your receival point?

Mr Davies: Absolutely! There are currently some schemeslate which allow for concession
under strict terms, but between weighbridges. Ifi ywe going on certain routes and you have
certain characteristics in the combination of tehigle, you are entitled to a concession, sometimes
up to 17.5 per cent for one of the schemes thabperate. That is if it is going between two
weighbridges. The harvest mass management schamejige really, because we are going from a
paddock to a weighbridge, and there are a smallbeuraf people who have the technology to be
able to assess what is on board before gettingueighbridge.

Hon SIMON O’BRIEN : A significant amount of grain is transported beén weighbridges, as
you put it, by road and also a significant amountdil. Can you give us a feel for what the rasip i
road versus rail?

Mr Davies: Once the grain is in our network—on average adalmout 60 per cent of the grain that
comes in is transported by rail—obviously grait@vested and delivered into our network and is
then picked up and moved again. So everything iharown—and John mentioned there were
20 million tonnes grown this year, that is easigamillion tonne movement task—20 million of it
IS into our network from fields. The rest of itagher on rail or between certified weighbridges. S
the harvest mass management scheme is purelyisanrilque period of time, and goes specifically
between the farm gate and the receival point.

Hon SIMON O’BRIEN : Putting to one side grain moved by rail, becahsé is not what we are
discussing here today, in the case of grain bemiglited between the weighbridges—to pick up on
that vernacular because 1 think that is what weuatierstand—are those loads often subject to
roadside checks by Main Roads heavy vehicle ofiger
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Mr Davies: Yes, a small number in the scheme of things,vaadinderstand about one per cent of
all loads, or one or two per cent, by Main Roadgj avhen stopped, a driver must provide the
correct permits and licensing information.

Hon SIMON O’BRIEN : Just the same as any other heavy vehicle operattire roads.
Mr Davies: Yes.

Hon SIMON O’BRIEN : So, given the volume of individual journeys thdt Kirton gave us
information about, probably quite a few vehicles stopped, but it is not a very large percentage.

Mr Davies: That is correct. At the moment at harvest sonteclkes are stopped.

Hon SIMON O’BRIEN : Let us go back to the area of concern now, aatighfrom the paddock
to the first weighbridge, the receival point. Whatuld be the level of roadside inspection by
government in that sector?

Mr Davies: We have no evidence but we believe that that &asally reduced since the
introduction of our scheme, because our scheme ®lsust that it is capturing all vehicles. We
have heard that it is around about one per cent—tatwo per cent.

Hon SIMON O’BRIEN : The government has not adopted the harvest masagament scheme,
but it seems fairly obvious that plenty of theificdrs see some benefit in it. Why will the
government not support the harvest mass managesokeine, to the extent that | can ask you to
answer that?

Mr Davies: My understanding is the legislation itself andithnterpretation of the legislation, and
there being no ability to offer any flexibility.

Hon SIMON O’BRIEN : But that is under the existing legislation?
Ms Price: The proposed bill.
Mr Davies: The bill proposed.

Hon SHEILA MILLS : So you are saying that because it is a uniforeceiof legislation,
therefore, the government does not feel that it thegbility to move beyond or amend the
legislation to suit your particular scheme?

Hon SIMON O’BRIEN : Right, because of the uniform nature; in thisecdlse mass load
provisions?

Ms Price: Yes.
Hon SIMON O’BRIEN : Mr Hassell, did you want to say something?

Mr Hassell: | believe that they see the grains industry ashsing unique. They think that the
problems we have in terms of interpreting the weafithe grain and the volumes of the grain are
not unique to agriculture; and | think that we saow that they are absolutely unique. For instance,
what | said to your earlier with regards to the @2@ loading points for mining, and this is an
extraordinarily guess at 55 000 out loading pdiatsagriculture, it is absolutely unique. | thirtkat

Is the biggest sticking point of all. They thinkathwe are just the same as any other industry. We
are not; we are unique. | think that they canna past the fact that we have a very variable
product. You cannot put 55 000—or however many—weiglges around, even 5 500
weighbridges you still have to get the grain baxkdur weighbridge on your farm, if you had one,
5500 being the number of shareholders in CBH wélover grain to CBH. It is such a unique
situation that they have not taken that into actaamd | think that we really need to show thas it
extraordinarily unique and that needs to be takemaccount.

Hon SHEILA MILLS : So, it is a one-size-fits-all scenario.
Mr Hassell: And it does not.
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Hon SHEILA MILLS : We have also had similar comments to this conemttnot quite the
same—Dby the livestock industry about their weights.

Hon SIMON O’BRIEN : While there is some uniqueness about grain vepsusr types of bulk
commodities being carried, the same uniquenessdaapply, say, in New South Wales or some
other grain-producing state.

Mr Hassell: Yes.

Hon SIMON O’BRIEN : Are you able to advise the committee as to hosy tbperate in those
states?

Mr Brockman : Could | answer that?
Hon SIMON O’BRIEN : Yes, sure, Mr Brockman.

Mr Brockman : They actually have the proper uniform rules iagal in New South Wales, and they
are finding in the grain industry there is currgrdl six to seven per cent under-load. So, really,
what we are frightened of having here is if thanslates over, you are gong to get this extra
number of freight movements. Whether it is 40 008®O000, there is going to be a large number of
extra freight movements if we do mirror what hapgened in New South Wales. Because they are
having to under-load, they cannot take the riskatthe industry is a little bit disappointed about
by the fact that the harvest mass management schasneot been adopted as we thought it would
be by the government, by the Main Roads departnienhat the scheme does deliver everything
that you would think Main Roads department wouldhivdt does deliver that certainty. It gives
them an enormous amount of knowledge as to whattisally happening on the road system. It
provides a scheme where people can get thrownfautfahey break the rules too many times. So
from our point of view what is happening in the teas states just backs up what has been said
earlier.

Hon SIMON O’BRIEN : Thanks for that. Mr Hassell?

Mr Hassell: As Slade said, there is a huge number of exthéclee movements on the road if the
scheme is not introduced. A big percentage of @inain, in a lean season in particular, goes onto
the roads because farmers have got time to chuttiter, so they have time to bring it down to a
metro grain centre. So a big percentage of thates¢hicle movement will be into the city. So it
does not only affect country people, but will atédtect the city people as well from all areas, from
the north, south and the east—not so much fromvist, | do not believe.

[11.30 am]

Mr Davies: | will refer to the economic consequences and laicrobustness in the rules of the

eastern states scheme. GrainCorp, which operatie® iaastern states, is currently in court facing
$18 million worth of offences for allowing overload trucks to appear at its sites in the 2006-07
harvest. The new legislation enabled the main r@adisority to capture all the information and it

has retrospectively prosecuted individual growensl @aransporters. Our interpretation of the

legislation is that the bulk handler, or the reeeiof the goods, and the managers within that
company could be prosecuted.

Hon SIMON O’BRIEN : Under the so-called chain of responsibility, whis a feature of this
legislation package, each time a grain truck exseled mass limit the farmer or the consigner, the
transporter, who may or may not be the same pessuahthe receiver - the bulk agent such as CBH
- will all be guilty of an offence. So, for everingle vehicle that was technically just overweight
that arrives at a receival point, not only would tiriver be liable but so too would the receiver. |
that the case?

Mr Davies: If we did not have the process and the rulesraddbe scheme, that would be the case.
That is our interpretation of it.

Hon SIMON O’BRIEN : Do you mean the harvest mass management scheme?
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Ms Price: Yes.

Mr Davies: We would give the option of either forfeiting tlogerloaded portion, from which we
would gain no benefit, or to return off site totrcthe load.

Hon SIMON O’BRIEN : There is no provision for the harvest mass mamage scheme under this
legislation.

Mr Davies: No. Therefore, we would be forced to turn awayvehicles, as is happening with
AWB'’s grain-direct sites. It operates about siseven sites in the east. For the harvest just gone,
turned away every single vehicle that was, as wid, ®nly .1 of a tonne overweight.

Hon SHEILA MILLS : Could not the ministers and staff with whom yae aegotiating see the
illogical behaviour in that?

Mr Davies: We have had considerable acknowledgement of ibeess of the scheme and even
congratulations; however, it is the opinion thatdemnthe new legislation we would not be able to
operate such a scheme.

Ms Price: | wanted to make the point that the minister teently written to WAFF suggesting
what is called a transitional scheme for the confiagrest. | am not suggesting that this is what the
government will adopt going forward. However, | weoh to put on the record that we have a
recommendation that acknowledges the success @xibgéng scheme and suggests a new scheme
for the following harvest. It is not with a legitilae stamp of approval; it is merely a suggestiuat t

is slightly less flexible than the one that CBHreumtly runs. It is certainly an acknowledgement of
the minister’s suggestion for this coming harvest.

Hon SIMON O’BRIEN : Presumably the reticence to actually make itfénial, rather than a nod
and a wink, scheme is simply —

Ms Price: It is simply a recommendation.

Hon SIMON O’BRIEN : — because of the intergovernmental agreemenngivise to this
legislation.

Ms Price: That appears to be the hat that they are pubttmg

Hon SIMON O’BRIEN : In addition to the specific terms of referencetltué whole package of
bills, we are, of course, the Standing CommitteeUmiform Legislation and Statutes Review;
therefore, we would be examining the intergovernadesgreement as a matter of course anyway. |
advise the hearing that that is most definitely stimmg that we will be examining further.

| have some more questions but before we move timetmn, Mr Smith do you have something else
to say?

Mr Smith: Yes, thank you. | would like to make a couplepaints. When we talk about the
operation of growers in Western Australia as opgdasethose in the eastern states, the eastern
states has a large number of options in the domestrket whereas Western Australia has zero
options in the domestic market. Ninety-two per ceinthis state’s grain is actually exported. The
point | make is that the growers have to get magringwain off as quickly as is humanly possible to
avoid any weather damage. That applies more isahéh of the state than in the north of the state,
but in some cases it happens in the north as well.

My second point is that we had a number of meetimigs Main Roads Western Australia and at
one meeting it agreed that five per cent was apable level, and we were wanting 10 per cent.
Another meeting was meant to be held before harbestit never happened. Main Roads did not
recall that meeting.

Hon SIMON O’BRIEN : Who were the principal officers you were dealmigh at Main Roads?
Mr Smith : There were five senior officers from Main Roads.
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Mr Davies: Doug Morgan is now the key figure.
Hon SIMON O’BRIEN : | raise this because it might help us in our ings.

Mr Davies: He is the head of heavy haulage. Over the paidte scheme, | think, Des Snook is
another person who is involved.

Mr Hassell: Rob Giles is another person who has had a stgmfirole in this. WAFF met with
Rob Giles.

Hon SIMON O’BRIEN : Is that in his capacity as ministerial chief t#fsor when he was in heavy
vehicles?

Mr Hassell: It was when he was ministerial chief of staff. \Wet with the minister earlier this
year. They gave us the response to the harvestmmassgement scheme and specified, as Ms Price
said, that it is looking at it for one year, ancegrear only. It involved a very much watered-down
harvest mass management scheme, back to five pér lmecause they believed that, as | said
earlier, we are not in a unique situation and tetdgy should be around to enable us to put in
55 000 weighbridges around the place.

Mr Smith: | will finish what | was saying. | refer to insg@ns of trucks from the farm to CBH.
When CBH introduced the harvest mass managemeeaitsshMain Roads literally disappeared off
the system. There have been zero full-time inspgetithin my zone over the past two years. They
just did not appear.

Hon SIMON O’BRIEN : Where is your zone, Mr Smith?

Mr Smith: | am in the great southern. Last year, when tir¢hern wheatbelt had very little or no
grain to deliver we would expect them to be in saethern zone, because they normally frequent
the northern zone and then travel to the southene.zLast year we did not see them at all. The
harvest mass management scheme has delivered gomiiance for Main Roads.

| spoke before about trucks that can carry diffeteads for different industries. The same truck
that carries grain could also carry sea contair@nsa tri-group for a sea container, the conceasion
loading of 26 tonnes is allowed. In the grain irdpst is 21 tonnes and a concessional loading is
normally 22.5 to 23 tonnes. The same truck canlidiiree things, but the minister will not give a
10 per cent tolerance to farmers. | cannot undedsiay.

Mr Hassell: Can | correct that? It is actually 27 tonnes.
Mr Smith : | am sorry, 27 tonnes.
Hon SIMON O’BRIEN : Is that for a concessional load for goods othantgrain?

Mr Hassell: Yes. | point out that there is no policing ofbiecause they cannot weigh the sea
containers as they come off the ships. The seaic@ns have to come off the ships and be taken to
the depots. They cannot be unloaded on the whhaeiefore, there is no policing of it whatsoever.

Mr Smith: Sea containers from abattoirs in the countrywal as grain, which is also from the
country, are being transported to the port on maaus and through built-up areas, with additional
tonnages. Farmers are talking about short tripscal bins.

Hon SIMON O’BRIEN : Does the grain carried in a sea container ataamincessional load, as a
general cargo, as opposed to grain being carriad impen bin truck?

[11.40 am]
Mr Smith : Correct.

Mr Davies: Generally the condition on that is that they hheen weighed at the start and the end
point.
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Hon SIMON O’BRIEN : That leads me to another question about weighittyv does a farmer
judge the weight being loaded in a paddock? Areethay aids or is it dead reckoning?

Mr Smith : Last year CBH Group ran a system that took adtiéet measure of the grain, and that
will —

Hon SIMON O’'BRIEN : How much is a hectolitre?
Mr Smith : One hectolitre is one litre.

Mr Hassell: No. A hectolitre is 100 litres, but it is takes @& half-metre measurement and averaged
out.

Mr Smith: Let us go back. | refer to one cubic metre ofirgnd to a normal scenario in which
there would be somewhere between 720 and 820 kitagyiof wheat per cubic metre. The measure
is calibrated and will give, for instance, 820 gsaper hectolitre. | hope you understand that. The
CBH system took hectolitre weights and involvesibic dimension of the truck. Guys were filling
to the lines inside the truck. If you are goingifrone paddock to another and there is an increase i
hectolitre weight, you fill to another line on ttrack. However, there is an issue, because when you
are filling over a truck and two trailers or twaiters, it is very, very difficult, as you can appiate
with grain coming into the truck, to filter thatq@rement. You could be one or two tonnes out on
each trailer. There could be a variation in hethveight with one harvester harvesting this side
of the paddock and another harvester harvestinthanside of the paddock. Hectolitre weights are
quite different and they could have gone into twitecent field bins. It is a very difficult scenari

Hon SIMON O’BRIEN : So you may get a significant variation in the sgmddock.

Mr Smith : Absolutely! As you go from soil type to soil ty@ad where possibly a thunderstorm
has come through one part of the paddock, you easignificant variation.

Hon SIMON O’BRIEN : At the moment farmers are getting a half litregighing that and
extrapolating it to a hectolitre and then thera ime system in the truck according to the immiedia
information as to how heavy typical grain is.

Mr Smith : It is best guess.

Hon SIMON O’BRIEN : That is better than dead reckoning. It is sonm gbmethod. Are any
other methods being employed? Is there any formeaghing apparatus on trucks?

Mr Smith : If you are buying a brand new trailer, you camenbbad scales on the trucks. On the old
transport equipment out there—some might be upOtyears of age —that is just not possible.
CBH is a $1.8 billion company. In terms of harvesguipment for Western Australian harvests
alone, we are talking about a $400 000 investmentfarmer. If you times that by 5 500 farmers,
we are talking about $22 billion worth of harvegtigpment alone. It is a significant industry. When
we look at what will happen in the longer term,iagjture hopefully will be here for a long time to
feed us and other parts of the world. The minirgdusiry will come and go. The state government
must look at where this industry is going and thstainability of the industry. It must be
sustainable.

Hon SIMON O’BRIEN : I think it was Mr Davies who told us about theest mass management
scheme. He mentioned the strike system wherebyardwho has infringed on several occasions
can be struck out when he arrives at a receivaitp@hat are the consequences of being struck out
under your scheme?

Mr Davies: To lose any tolerance for the rest of the harvidstvever, he would still be able to
deliver. Every time he is above the standard lijrtit® portion that he would need to forfeit is
increased and he would lose any right to a toleranc

Hon SIMON O’BRIEN : If | were to bring successive loads to your reakpoint under the harvest
mass management scheme and | have a tolerancepef tént —
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Mr Davies: Up to 10 per cent depending on the vehicle igetf whether it is safe.

Hon SIMON O’BRIEN : If | exceed the regulation limit by five per ceham within the tolerance
but | have still gone over the regulation limisHould not have had that amount on the road. What
are the consequences when | arrive at the regedinal in that condition under your scheme?

Mr Davies: Under the scheme that would be an acceptable, nidss per cent is accepted, in the
two years that it has been run by being five pet oger.

Hon SIMON O’BRIEN : So you would receive the 105 per cent load bexaluss within the
tolerance. If I brought you a mass of grain thateexded the regulation limit by 12 per cent—I now
have a 112 per cent load—what would be the reaetigour receival point?

Mr Davies: If you were entitled to the full 10 per cent, yaould have exceeded the scheme rules
and that additional two per cent would need to dréefted or would cause you to leave the site.
You would also incur a strike. In the first year agerated it on a flat strike system; that is, tame
every occurrence. In the second year we amendéedathmaflect the severity of the overloading. If
you are under five per cent but over your acceptatdss, you get one strike; if you are between
five and 10 per cent over the acceptable mass godogr strikes in one hit. If you are more than
that you lose all eight strikes in one hit and@ueof the scheme for the season on the one load.

Hon SIMON O’BRIEN : If | am out of the scheme for the season, doas rifean that | can no
longer deliver my grain to a receival point?

Mr Davies: That is incorrect. You can deliver there, butytde not get a tolerance.
Hon SIMON O’BRIEN : If there is no tolerance, would any excess bfefigd?

Mr Davies: Yes or you would have to leave. So, in that s$itur to be sure, it would still be a
requirement to under load to avoid having to rehome.

Hon SIMON O’BRIEN : | understand. | can see one potential hole ingbaeme. | will run it pass
you and get your response, if | may. If | weredket all my grain to you—it is a 112 per cent load
that | can bring in one trip—I will still get my iulO per cent tolerance and | would only forfdiet
two per cent. In real life, would that discouragam@mer from making the two trips that should have
been made?

Mr Davies: Absolutely! The gentlemen here will elaborate enan the price of grain at the
moment. With an average price of $450 a tonne etite per cent over on a road train carrying
100 tonnes of grain is 10 tonnes. We have a capmilhe scheme. For argument’s sake, if it were
10 tonnes, that would be $4 500. There is a siganiti economic consequence to the growers and,
as a result, growers have to decide whether teifaf whether it is more economic to return ad th
way home to rectify the load before coming backmgath the same grain.

[11.50 am]

Hon SIMON O’BRIEN : The answer to this question is going to varyjtsmight be a bit of an
over-general or difficult question, but is thersmaximum distance that farmers would be travelling
to their nearest receival point?

Mr Hassell: We did some figures on it, and we estimated #mativerage trip is probably an 80k
lead, so the average round trip will be 160 kilom®t For someone to take that home, it is a pretty
significant cost. Whether they forfeit or take @rhe, either way it is very, very expensive.

Hon SIMON O’BRIEN : | appreciate your assistance. We are just aboubbtime. It does not
take much to run out of a quorum when we are shiomembers, as we are today. | am going to
bring this hearing to a conclusion in the next fewmutes, but | wonder, perhaps to you, Ms Price,
are there any concluding remarks you would liken@ke on behalf of the group or on any other
matters that we have not covered?
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Ms Price: | guess, Chairman, we would like to thank the potiee for giving us the opportunity to
come and reiterate the important aspects of ounsson. Vehicle overloading is not a good result
for the community, and we believe that the gragtustry has gone about it in a responsible manner
and shown that it can self-regulate, and we woellly like that to be taken consideration when
giving further consideration to this particularlbll guess | would like to quickly ask any of our
colleagues whether there was anything else inquéati they wanted to focus on before we close
today. No? Thanks, once again.

Hon SIMON O’BRIEN : Thanks very much for that. We note the two kelgnsigsions that you
make at article (d) of your joint written submissjevhich has already been received.

| would like to thank all of you from the three argsations. | think this has been a very good
hearing and we have obtained a lot of benefit. that, we thank all of our withesses for their
assistance, and we will close the hearing at tbiat @and | bid you all good morning.

Hearing concluded at 11.51 am



